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WILLIAM T. WALSH

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT CLERK
" DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA : Hon, Freda L Wolfson, U.S.D.J.
v, : Crim. No. 15-196 (FLW)
BOBBY BOYE, . CORRECTED CONSENT
a/k/a “Bobby Ajiboye,” . JUDGMENT OF FORFEITURE
a/k/a “Bobby Aji-Boye,” : (MONEY JUDGMENT) AND
| PRELIMINARY ORDER OF
Defendant. | . FORFEITURE AS TO SPECIFIC
PROPERTY (FINAL AS TO THE
DEFENDANT)

WHEREAS, on or about July 16, 20185, the Court entered a Consent

Judgment of Forfeiture (Money Judgment) and Preliminary Order of Forfeiture

asto Specific Property (Final as to the Defendant ) {the “Preliminary Order“]

imposing the Money Judgment upon the defendant and forfeiting all of his title |
and interest in certain specific property (the “Specific Property”). A copy of the |
Preﬁminary Order is attached hereto as Exhibit A and ihcorporated herein by
reference as if set out in full; |

WHE?EAS, upon the request of the United States, the Preliminary Order

is hereby corrected to add further detail to the description of one of the specific

- properties included in the Preliminary Order;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED

THAT:
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1. The description of the real property identified in paragraph (c){iii}
on page 2, and in paragraph 6(bj(iii) on page .6, of the Consent Judgment of
Forfeiture (Money Judgment) and Preliminary Order of Forfeiture as to Specific
Property (Final as to the Defendant ) entered on or about July 16, 2015 (the
“Preliminary Order”) is hereby stricken and replaced With the following:

(c) All of the defendant’s right, title, and interest, including all
appurtenances and improvements thereon, in the following real

property, which the defendant admilts constitutes or is derived from
proceeds traceable to the offense charged in Count One of the

Information . ..

iii.  Real property commonly known as 140 Grove Street,
Elizabeth, New Jersey, now known as 142-144 Grove Street,
- Elizabeth, New Jersey. (A copy of a Deed recorded on
October 16, 2012, including a legal description, is attached
as Exhibit B to this Corrected Consent Judgment of
Forfeiture (Money Judgment) and Preliminary Order of

Forfeiture as to Specific Property (Final as to the -
Defendant); . .. - '
2.  The Preliminary Order shall remain in full force and effect in all
other respects. |
3. This Order is final as to the defendant at the time of ité entry byl
the Court, shall be deemed part of. the sentence of the defendant, and shall be
jncluded in the judgment of conviction therewith. |
4._ ' Pursuént to 21 U.S.C. § 853(n)(1) and Rule 32.2{b)(6) of the
Federal Rul_es of Criminal Procedure, the United Statés shall publish notice of
this Order for at least 30 consecutive days on the govemmenf internet site
www.forfeiture.gov. The Unifed States shall also send notice of this Order to

any person who reasonably appears to be a potential claimant with standing to

contest the forfeiture in the ancillary proceeding.

-2.
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5. Pursuant to Fed R. Crim. P. 2_3.2(bj(6)'and 21 U.S.C. § 853(n){(2)
and {n)(3), the notice of forfeiture must describe the forfeited property with
reasonable particularity, state the times by which a petition contesting the
forfeiture must be filed, and state the name and contact information for the
government attorney to be served with the petition. The notice shall also state
that the petition (i) shall be for a hearing to adjudicate the validity of the
petitioner's alleged interest Iin the Specific Property, (ii) shall be signed by the
petitioner under penalty of perjury, and (iii) shall set forth the nature and
extent of the petitioner's right, title or interest in the Specific Property, the time
and circumstances of the petitioner's acquisition of the right, title and interest
in the Specific Property, any additional facts supporting the petitioner's claim,
and the relief sought.

6. Any person, othef than defendant Bobby Boye, claiming interest in
thé Specific Property must file a.petition within 60 days from the first day of
publication of notice on the government internet site (or ho later than 35 days
from the mailing of .direct notice, if direct notice is sent to the petitioner or the
petitioner’s attofney), pursuant to Rule 32.2(b)(6) of the Federal Rules of
Criminal Procedure and Rule G(4} and G{S) of the Supplemental Rules for
Admiraity or Maritime Claims and Asset Forfeitu.re Actions.

7. Upon adjudication of all third party interests, the Court will enter a
final order of.forfeiturc pursﬁant to 21 U.8.C. § 853({n}{(7) and Fed. R. Crim.

P. 32.2(c)(2}, in which all interests will be addressed.
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8. This Court shall retain jurisdiction to enforce this Order, and to
amend it as necessary, pursuant to Rule 32.2(¢) of the Federal Ruies of
Criminal Procedure.

ORDERED this |2 day of October, 2015.

HONDRABLE FREJDA L. WOLFSON
Unitdd States Distfict Judge

The undersigned hereby consent to
the entry and form of this order:

PAUL J. FISHMAN
United States Attorney

patea: 10 \S[\S

BARBARA A. WAR
Assistant United Stateg/Attorneys

R /\%"1 Dated: (O g/s
K/ANPHONY T AS, ESQ. -

ttorney for ant Bobby Boye

Nt RN,

- BOBBY BPYFJ, D}é/lendant
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EXHIBIT A
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20VIRDICID/SUR/BAW /gt

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA . Hon. Freda L. Wolfson, U.S.D.J.
v. . Crim. No. 15-196 (FLW)
BOBBY BOYE, ' :  CONSENT JUDGMENT OF
a/k/a “Bobby Ajiboye,” FORFEITURE {(MONEY
a/k%/a "Bobby Aji-Boye,” : JUDGMENT] AND PRELIMINARY
ORDER OF FORFEITURE AS TO
Defendant. :  SPECIFIC PROPERTY (FINAL AS
| 70 THE DEFENDANT)

WHEREAS, on or about April 28, 2015, defendant Bobby Boye, a/k/a
“Bobby Ajiboye,” a/k/a “Bobby Aji-Boye,” ("Bobby Boye” or the *defendant’)
pleaded guilty pursuant to a plea agreement with the United States to a one-
count Information, which charged him with conapiracy to commit wire fraud,
contrary to 18 U.S.C. § 1343, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1349 (the
“Information®); _

WHEREAS, pursuast to 18 U.S.C. § 981(a){1)(C) and 28 U.8.C. § 2461(c),
& person convicted of a violation of 18 U.B.C. § 1343, which oonatim.tea.a
specified unlawful activity within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 1956(c)7), ora
conspiracy to commit such offense, as alleged in the Information, shall forfeit to
the United States all prbperty, real and personal, that constitutes or is derived
from proceeds traceable to the commiasion of such offense;
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WHEREAS, as part of his piea agreement, the defendant agreed to forfeit

to the United States, pursuant to 18 U.S.C, § 981(a){1)(C) and 28 U.S.C.

§ 2461{c):

(&)

(b)

().

A sum of money equal to $4,233,015.42, repreasenting the amount
of proceeds obtained as a result of the offense of conviction (the
“Money Judgmerit”); and

All of the defendant's right, title and interest in the following
property, which was seized or restrained on or about June 19,
2014, which the defendant admits constitutes or is derived from
proceeds traceable to the offense charged in Count Oue of the
Information:

i. The ocontents of JPMorgan Chase Bank account number
EEEN0399, held in the name of Opus and Best, LLC

(approximately $103.84);

Approximately $8,408 in U.8. currency seized from the
defendent; and

All of the defendant’s right, title, and interest, including all
appurtenances and improvements thereon, in the following real
property, which the defendant admits constitutes or is derived

from proceeds traceable to the offense charged in Count One of the
Information.

[~
.

f. 25 Crescent Hollow Court, Ramaey. New Jeraey-
ii. 36 Rosewood Court, North Haledon, N_ew Jersey; and
ili. 140 Grove Street, Elizabeth, New Jersey:

{hereinafter referred to collectively as the “Specific Property”), with any forfeited

money and the net proceeds derived from the sale of the forfeited Spemﬁc

Property to be applied to the Money Judgment, in partial satisfaction thereof; -
WHEREAS, the following administratively forfeited assets or their net

sale proceeds will also be applied to the Money Judgment, in partial
satisfaction thereof:
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(a) Approximately $316,759.63, representing the net proceeds from
the sale of the real property located at 9 Cobblestone Court,
Oalda.nd New Jersey;

(b} One Franck Muller Conquistador Grand Prix Watch;

() One 2012 Bentley Continental, VIN (NG

(@) One 2011 Rolls Royce Ghost, VIN _49332

(e} One 2012 Land Rover Range Rover, VIN —87702

and

() Stock Ccrtlﬁca‘tc No. B-1 for 301,350 Shares of Herbal Water, Inc.,
held by Opus & Best LLC; _

WHEREAS, in the plea agreement, the defendant further consented to
the entry of orders of forfeiture pursuant to Rule 32.2(b}(2) of the Federal Rules
of Criminal Procedure; waived the requiremerits of Federal Rules of Criminal

_ Procedure 32.2 and 43(a) regarding notice of forfeiture in the charging
instrument, annbun;:ement of the forfeiture at éentenning. and incorporation of
the forfeiture in the Judgn:ient of Conviction; acknowledged that he understood
that forfeiture of assets is part of the sentence that will be imposed ﬁpon him
in this case and waived any lailure by the Court to advise him of this, 'pursuant
to Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 11{b)({1){J), during the plea hearing; and
waived any and all claims that the forfeiture constitutes an excessive fine and
agreed that the forfeiture did not violate the Ejghth Amendment; |

WHEREAS, the defendant agrees that this Order is final at the time of its
entry by the Court, pursuant to Rule 32.2(b)(4){A} of the Federal Rules of
Criminal .Procedure;

-3-
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WHEREAS, the provisiona of 21 U.8.C. 8§ 853(n) (incorporated by 28 _
U.8.C. § 2461(c)) require publication and notice to third parties known to have
alleged an interest in forfeited specific property and the disposition of any

_ petitions filed under 21 U.8.C, § 853(n} before the United States may have clear
title to such property;

WHEREAS, Rule 32.2(c){1) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure
provides that no ancillary proceeding is required to the extent that the
forfeiture consiats 61' a money judgment.

WHEREAS, good and suflicient cause having been shown, it is hereby
ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED AS FOLLOWS:

Money Judgment |

1. Asaresult of the defendant’s conviction of the wire fraud
conspiracy offense charged in the Infermation, and pursuant to the plea
agreement and 18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(1){C) and 28 U.S.C. § 2461(c), and Fed. R.
Crim. P. 32.2(b)(1) and (b)(2), & criminal forfeiture money judgment in the
amount of $4,233,015.42 {the “Money Judgment”) is hereby entered against
the defendant Bobby Boye. |

2. Upon entry of this Consent Judgment and Order of Forfeiture, this
Order is final as to the defendant at the time of its entry by the Court, shall be
deemed part of the sentence of the defendant, and shall be included in the
judgment of conviction therewith.

3.  All payments on the Money Judgment shall be made by postal
money order, bank or certified check, made payable, in this instance to the

b



Case 3:15-cr-00196-FLW Document 28 Filed 10/15/15 Page 10 of 18 PagelD: 119
Case 3:15-cr-00196-FLW Document 26 Filed 07/16/15 Page 5 of 10 PagelD: 103

United States Marshals Service, and delivered by mail to the United States
Attorney’s Office, District of New Jersey, Attn: Asset Forfeiture and Money
Laundering Unit, 270 Broad Street, 7th Floor, Newark, New Jersey 07102, and
shall indicate the defendant's name and case number on the face of the checik.

4. Pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 853_, the United States Marshals Service is
authorized to deposit all payments on the Money Judgment in thé Asgets
Forfeiture Fund, and the United States shall have clear title to such forfeited
property. _

'S.  Pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 32.2(b)(3), upon
entry of thia Order, the United States Attorney’s Office is authorized to conduct
any discovery needed to identify, locate, or dispose of property to satisfy the
Money Judgment, including depositions, interrogatories, requests for
production of documents _and the issuance of subpocnas.

- Specific Property

6.  Asa further result of the defendant's conviction of the wire fraud
conspiracy offense charged in the Information, and pursuant to 18 U.8.C,

§ 981(a){1)(C) and 28 U.S.C. § 2461(c), and Fed. R. Crim. P. 32.2(b)(1) and
{b)(2), and based upon the plea agreement, all of the defendant's right, title and
interest in the following property (the “Specific Property”), is hereby forfeited to
the United States of America for disposition according to law, subject to the
provisions of 21 U.S.C. § 853:
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(a) All of the defendant’s right, title and interest in the following
property, real or personal, which was seized or restrained on
or about June 19, 2014, which the defendant admits
constitutes or is derived from proceeds traceable to the
o!fenne charged in Count One of the Information:

i, The contents of JPMorgan Chase Bank account
number [Jll0399, held in the name of Opus and |
Best, LLC {approximately $103.84); and

ii. Approximately $8,408 in U.S. currency seized from the
defendant; and

(b}  All of the defendant’s right, title, and interest, including all
appurtenances and improvementa therecn, in the following
real property, which the defendant admita constitutes or is
derived from proceeds traceable to the offense charged in
Count One of the Information:

i. 25 Crescent Hollow Court, Ramsey, New Jersey;
ii. 36 Rosewood Court, North Haledon, New Jersey; and
iii. 140 Grove Street, Elizabeth, New Jeruey. _
7. Upon entry of a. final order of forfeiture as to the Specific Property,
any forfeited money and the net proceeds derived from the sale of forfeited
property will be applied to the Money Judgment until the Money Judgment is
satisfied in full.
8. By virtue of the defendant’s guilty plea and the terms of the plea
agreement, and pursuant to 21 U.8.C. § 853(g) and 18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(1)(C)

and 28 U,8.C. § 2461(c), the United States is entitled, pending any assertion of
third-party claime, to reduce the Porfeited Specific Property to its posseasion
and to notify any and all potential purchasers and transferees thereof of its
intercst therein.
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9,  Pursuant to Rule 32.2(b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Criminal

Procedure, the United States Marshals Service, its agent or designee is hereby

authorized to:
(@)

(&)

(c)

(d)

take or maintain possession of the Specific Property and hold
such property in its secure custody and control;

maintain existing insurance policies and, to the best of its
ability, renew any other insurance policies, that the United
States, in its sole discretion, determines to be necessaxy to
preserve the value of the Specific Property pending sale;

solfcit from among a limited number vendors assistance in

the preservation or maintenance of the Specific Property
pending sale and the disposal of personal property; and

enter into occupancy agreements as the United States may
deem appropriate,

10. Pursuant to 21 U.S8.C. § 853(g) and Rule 32.2(b)(3), the defendant,

his attorneys, agents, spouse, and other family members, and anyone acting an

his behalf, and all persons or entities acting in concert or participation with

any of the above, and all pei'aons and entities having actual knowledge of this

Order;
(a)

(b)

{c)

shall not directly or indirectly, transfer, sell, assign, pledge,
distribute, hypothecate, encumber, or dispose of in any
manner; cause to be transferred, sold, assigned, pledged,
distributed, hypothecated, encumbered, or disposed of in
any manner; or take, or cause to be teken, any action that
would have the effect of depreciating, damaging, or in any
way diminishing the value of the Specific Property;

shall not use or permit the Specific Property to be used for
any illegal activity; and

shall not take any action that would depreciate, damage, or
in any way diminish the value of the Forfeited Specific
Property without the prior written consent of the United
States Attorney's Office.

-7-
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11. In addition to abiding by the proscriptions set forth in Waph
10, above, 30 long as the defendant Bobby Boye maintains custedy and control
of the above-described forfeited real property, the defendant shall not incur any
debts or other liens againet any of the forfeited real properties; will pay all taxes
and other financial obligations owed an the forfeited real properties; will
maintain the forfeited real properties in a reasonable manner; wﬂl carmry
appropriate insurance on the forfeited real properties; and will not allow the
forfeited real properties to fall into disrepair.

12. Inthe eveﬁt the defehdant Bobby Boye is ever in violation of
paragraphs 10.01' 11 above, the defendant shall immediately" vacate and
surrender such real property or cause any occupants to immediately vacate

~ and surrender such property.

13, Pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 853(n)(}) and Rule 32.2(b)(6) of the
Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, the United States shall publish notice of
this Order for at Jeast 30 consecutive days on the government {nternet site
www.forfeiture.gov. The United States shall also send notice of this Order to
any person who reasonably appears .to be a potential claimant with standing to
contest the forfeiture in the ancillary proceeding,.

14. Pursuant to Fed R. Crim. P. 23.2(b)(6} and 21 U.S.C. § 853(n){2)

- and {n)(3), the notice of forfeiture must describe the forfeited property with
reasonable particularity, state the times by which a petition contesting the
forfeiture must be filed, and state the name and contact information for the

gairemment attorney to be served with the petition. The ndtice shall a.lao. state
-B-



Case 3:15-cr-00196-FLW Document 28 Filed 10/15/15 Page 14 of 18 PagelD: 123
Case 3:15-cr-00196-FLW Document 26 Filed 07/16/15 Page 9 of 10 PagelD: 107

that the petition (i) shall be for a hearing to adjudicate the validity of the
petitioner's alleged interest in the Specific Property, (ii} shall be signed by the
petitioner under penalty of perjury, and (iii} shall set forth the nature and
éxtent of the petitioner’s right, title or ﬁMnt in the Speciﬁc Property, the time
and circumstances of the petitioner's acquisition of the rigl:xt. title and interest
in the Specific Property, any additional facts supporting the petitioner’s claim,
and the relief songht.

15. Any person, other than defendant Bobby Boye, claiming intereat
in the Specific Property must file a petition within 60 days from the first day of
_pubﬁcation of notice on the government internet site (or no lﬁ.ter than 35 days

from the mailing of direct notice, if direct notice is sent to the petitioner or the
petitioner’s attorney), pursuant to Rule 32.2(b}{6} of the Federal Ruies of
Criminal Procedure and Rule G{4) and G(5) of the Supplemental Rules for
 Admiralty or Maritime Claims and Asset Forfeiture Actions. o
i6. Upon idjudicaﬁon of all third. party interests, the Court will enter a
 final order of forfeiture pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 853(n}(7) and Fed. R. Crim.
P. 32.2(c)(2), in which all interests will be addressed.
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17. This Court shall retain jurisdiction to enforce this Order, and to

amend it as neceasary, pursuant to Rule 32.2(e) of the Federal Rules of
Criminal Procedure.

Jul
Cu
ORDERED this |b day of M, 2015.

HONORABLE FREDA L. WOLFSON
United States Disfrict Judge

The undersigned hereby consent to
the entry and form of this order:

PAUL J. FISHMAN
United States Attorney

patea: 7 /1l 201§

Dated: 7 6 2015'

ONY
ttorney for Deféndant Bobby Baye

_M%nl ‘M&T‘ J\Dated: 7{'\ 16 l 1o lf

- BOBBY O'YT, Fefendant

-10-
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'EXHIBIT B
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Preparcd By:

DEED

Thiz DEED is made on Oatohear (f , 2012,

BETWEENM Trunity Chclscian &cadwy. 8 non profit corperation of
the Stacte of Now Jerscy

uhnu addzes3 19 417 Pennington Stireot, Elizabath, IIJ 07202 referred
to a5 Lo the GRANTOR. - _

AHD Opog & Bast, LLC

vhoss -paat office address is 100 Park Avenve, New York, New York
toferted to as the GRANTEE.

The woxrds “GRANTOR" and "GRANTEE® shall mean all GRANTORS and al}
GRANTEES l:isted above.

Transfer of Ownerghip. The GRAHTOR grants and conveys (transfers
ovnership of) z=he property deacribed beiow t0 the GRANTEE, This
tcansfer s made for the aum of Ono Dollax (§1.00). The GRAFTOR
acknowledges rocelipt of thlis money, :

Tax Map Reforencas. iN.J.8. A, 486:15-2.1) Municipality of
Elizsbeth Bliock Ne. - Lot Ne. Account Ko.

M-- The pruperty consists of the land and all the bulldings
and structures op the land in the of County of Union and State of New
Jorsay. The legal description is @

SEE SUNKDULE "A~ LBGAL DEZCRIPTION ATTACKED
Belpy cosxonly koown ss 140 Grove Streei, Elizabeth, HJ,

Being the pane pramises conveyed to tde Orantor horzin by deed of
Zrinity Cheistizn Contors of tio hAsswpblion af God dated Sepctember I,
2000 axd recordsd iz tha Unton Cousty Cloxk's COffigam om COctobex 10,
2009 in Dood Bock 5787 et Page §09.

The Grastor hezein acknowladges and reprosants that the coaditions
for rovaxtar aa coptainod in the exigina) desd of comveyance gat forch
above have bean mot and thet the Grantor horaln 2as neithor a legal nox
aguitable claim to titla in tie premiscsy. Rotwithytanding the
afoxesaid the Grantor Berehy quil claims smy sud all righto of any
aature ox kind that the Grantor has in the pyesisos.

. fudjert tu esscwenta, rustrictions and covenanta of xecoxd and
smah stuts of facts ag pn docuxratse survey may reveal,

085927-0189
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“TITLE INSURANCE COMMITMENT
Issped by Acres Lund Tithe Agency, Ine.
AGENT FOR CHICAGO TIVLE INSURANCE COMPANY

Commitment Number: 288006 .

SCHEDULE A
LEGAL DRSCRIPTION
All that certain Lot, piece or parcel of land, with the buildings end improvements thereon erected,
situale, lying and being in the City of Elizabeth in the Comty of Union, State of NJ:

BEGINNING at a point in the westerly sideline of Grove Sireet being distant 80 feet form the
intorsection of the westerly sideline of Grove Street with the nottheﬂy sideline of Pennington Street
and thence running; -

(1) South 88 degrees 30 minutes West 34.09 fee: 10 8 point; meucs
(2) North 58 degrees $1 minutcs West 99.32 feet to 3 point; THENCE
(3) North 88 degrees 30 minutes East, 117.71 foet to a point; THENCE

(8) Along the westerty sideling of Grove Street, South 01 degree SOmhmuEutSJ.ss feet tathe
point and place of BEGINNING.

The above description is drawn in accordance with a survey made by Morgan Engmeerlns.LL,C
dated September 6, 2012,

NOTE FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY: Being known and desiguited as Lot

1120 N/K/A 604, Bleck 13 on the Tax Map in the City of Elizabeth in the Connty of Union, State of NJ.
FOR ANFORMATION ONL Y: Fremises in question is kmown as 142-144 Grove Street, Eflzabeth, N 07202

ng5927-0190



